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REQUESTS FOR PROPOSALS 
Questions & Answers 

February 11, 2022 
 
The Portland Business Alliance is grateful for the tremendous interest in its Website Development 
and Brand Re-Design request for proposal. We received many great questions, and below are 
answers to the general questions received – and that directly address the items detailed in the RFP. 
Please note that all project-detailed and/or discovery-related questions will be answered as part of 
the project process that we’ll undertake with our selected vendor. 
 
 
Q. Can foreign-based firms submit a proposal? 
A. While any firm is welcome to submit a proposal, competitive preference will be given to a firm that 
is located in the Pacific Northwest, and particularly in Oregon. 
 
Q. Do you have any hesitations about working remotely with an agency? 
A. No. Although we do ask that the selected vendor be available to meet with our stakeholder teams 
during traditional office hours. 
 
Q. What is the total budget for this project? 
A. The current budget assigned to this project is $75,000. 
 
Q. Does the event registry functionality need to integrate with any backend systems? Does it need to 
support purchasing tickets for paid events? 
A. Yes. Additionally, the Alliance seeks to create a flexible, informative, up-to-date website that is 
easy to maintain, intuitive, and user-friendly. We wish to develop a website that allows for easy 
interface with users and that allows for information to be shared to and from the site. 
 
Q. Is there any desired functionality or integrations outside of what is mentioned in the RFP that 
you'd like to see on the new website? 
A. The selected vendor will have an opportunity to meet with various stakeholder groups to 
determine what other desired functionality and/or integrations might be necessary. 
 
Q. What types of user and brand research would you like to include as part of this RFP? Are you 
looking for a separate deliverable reviewing the discovery and research? 
A. The RFP places special emphasis on user experience. As part of this RFP, the selected vendor will  
conduct user experience interviews with varied stakeholder groups to collect feedback that helps 
identify likes, dislikes, user paths, important criteria, improvements, and other critical information. 
The selected vendor will gather and tabulate all stakeholder feedback, then use that as a guide for 
development. 
 
Q. How will you measure project success? Or whether or not the objectives have been met? 
A. As stated in the RFP, at the conclusion of the project, the selected vendor will deliver to the 
Alliance: (1) an executable brand package, a new logo, a compelling tagline, and a standards brand 
manual to guide staff in seamlessly executing the new brand; and, (2) a visually powerful and 
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dynamic, problem-free website that incorporates all relevant and critical feedback from the Alliance’s 
stakeholders  
 
Q. How would you rate staff experience with open-source CMS platforms like Drupal and 
WordPress? 
A. Alliance staff have experience using open-source CMS platforms. 
 
Q. Will you need any further support from the vendor’s team after the project launch? If yes, what 
amount of work do you anticipate after the website launch every month? 
A. It is anticipated that additional training and support will be required after website launch. 
Competitive preference will be given to vendors that provide details on the user training and support 
included for our content editors along with the training support format (i.e., live web, chat, email, 
phone-based, hard copy, other documentation, etc.). 
 
Q. Do you consider a multi-phase launch? 
A. Depending on the project circumstances, we may consider a multi-phase launch of the new 
website and brand.  
 
Q. Do you have a sense of priority of the features described in the RFP, or looking for a vendor’s 
recommendations? 
A. While we have a sense of the features we’d like to include on the website, the vendor will also 
conduct user experience interviews with varied stakeholder groups to determine additional features 
desired and/or needed. 
 
Q. Do you have any examples of the website design you like? 
A. We welcome all design recommendations based on the information presented in our RFP. 
 
Q. Do you have a guideline and an internal design team to participate in the design process or this 
process will be fully on a vendor? 
A. The Alliance has some internal design capacity, though we will look to the vendor to guide that 
process based on the brand re-design work. 
 
Q. Do you already have an environment to survey key stakeholders and online communities, or you 
assume that the vendor will perform all the surveys? 
A. The Alliance has the capacity to engage stakeholder groups, though we will rely on the vendor to 
draft and finalize stakeholder questions and activities. 
 
Q. Do you already have a marketing and content strategy foundation for a new website or would you 
like vendors to start from scratch? 
A. The Alliance currently has a highly-interactive website that encourages engagement with various 
audiences. The website is a resource of information; a place for registering attendance for upcoming 
events; a way to encourage engagement on policy issues; and, includes a member portal where 
users can update business information tied to the searchable online business directory. While we 
have some marketing and content strategy in place already, the selected vendor will contribute 
ideas, best practices, recommendations for how to optimize our strategy. 
 
Q. Can we safely assume that content migration from the current website will a part of the vendor's 
responsibility? 
A. Yes. 
 
Q. Do you want vendor to upload new content to the website produced by your team or you’d like to 
do this on your own as a part of training process? 
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A. Both. We expect that the vendor will be uploading new content to the website AND training staff on 
how to do so. 
 
Q. How many visitors do you get per month on the main website? 
A. Between 8,000 and 10,000 per month. 
 
Q. How many page views do you get per month on the main website? 
A. Between 15,000 and 20,000 per month. 
 
Q. Is it possible to access Google Analytics to see the data during work on the proposal? 
A. The selected vendor will have free access to all analytics.  
 
Q. Do you have a HotJar or similar tools connected to your current website to see the UX and 
heatmaps? 
A. No.  
 
Q. What software do you use for marketing automation, newsletters, etc.? 
A. Constant Contact 
 
Q. Are you planning to have signed in users on the website except staff and content editors? Should 
it support Single Sign-On? 
A. Yes, member users will access member portal through third party software. Only staff will have 
access to CMS system. 
 
Q. Would you need any original or stock videography and/or photography? 
A. The Alliance has a limited stock of photos and videos. We would encourage the selected vendor to 
assist with photos and/or video. 
 
Q. Describe the agency relationship you seek beyond project updates and communication. 
A. As a membership organization, the Alliance seeks to more meaningfully engage its member base, 
prospective members and the community at-large. The selected vendor will be an active partner with 
key staff on member engagement strategy and implementation of the project.  
 
Q. What marketing materials do you use regularly that would benefit from a redesign with 
the rebranding effort? 
A. This is outside the scope of the project. These materials will be created in-house using the new 
brand system and protocols. 
 
Q. What is the role the Portland Business Alliance website plays to empower member 
recruitment? Member engagement? 
A. Please visit our website – membership page. 
 
Q. Is the Portland Business Alliance registered as a non-profit?  
A. The Alliance is registered as a 501(c)(6).  
 
Q. Will the selected vendor be expected to provide periodic, formal progress presentations to Board 
members and/or membership (in addition to our standard internal team reporting practices)?  
A. As indicated in the RFP, there will be varied stakeholder groups that will need to be consulted by 
the selected vendor and involved for the duration of the project. Members and board members will 
be included in those groups. 
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Q. Will the selected vendor be responsible for editing any current content for use within the 
redeveloped website?  
A. No. Content will be repurposed by staff. 
 
Q. Has the Portland Business Alliance conducted any brand or usability research of their own? Are 
there any existing research findings that would be made available to the selected vendor?  
A. No. 
 
Q. Should development of branded identity package materials (business cards, letterhead, 
envelopes and any other core communication materials) be included in scope?  
A. No.  
 
Q. Should Social Media rebranding/redevelopment be included in scope?  
A. No. 
 
Q. If development of core branded ID package and Social Media materials are not in scope, should 
the brand style guidelines address these and/or any other marketing materials?  
A. No. This will be accomplished in-house.  
 
Q. Are there any other sub-domains in use that we should be aware of (beyond community. 
portlandalliance.com)?  
A. No. 
 
Q. Does the team have an internal technology staff member that would be involved with the 
project/site?  
A. No. We use an external technology contractor that could be minimally consulted as part of this 
work. 
 
Q. Does the site require any level of ADA or other specific standards compliance?  
A. We welcome recommendations by the selected member that are based on stakeholder feedback 
as well as industry standards.  
 
Q. Is any section of the site expected to be multilingual?  
A. No. 
 
Q. For: "Provides an archival system for press releases, photos, videos and moves historical data to a 
searchable database." - Does such a database already exist in any form or is there just a set of 
assets to work from only?  
A. The current site has an archival process built in. The selected vendor will implement a best-
practice strategy for this and adopt a best-practice archival system. 
 
Q. The asset/document repository portion of the request seems clear, what does historical "data" 
represent?  
A. Historical data represents the information already on our site, specifically the information and 
data that we will need to migrate into the new site. 
 
Q. Do you require or will require a mobile version of your CMS content? 
A. As indicated in the RFP, the new website will utilize responsive design with the latest technologies 
to provide a consistent user interface across common modern devices, including desktop, tablets, 
and mobile devices.  
 
Q. Do you have a current internal content team? 
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A. Yes. 
 
Q. Do you have a current internal design team? 
A. Yes, although the selected vendor will provide best-practice guidance utilizing the brand redesign 
system and protocols. 
 
Q. Are you envisioning a completely brand new visual system (logo, color palette, etc.), or more of a 
refreshed system/a rejuvenation of what you currently have? 
A. We envision a new brand system. 
 
Q. For the rebrand, you mention detailed treatment of marketing materials. What materials would 
this include? 
A. As indicated in the RFP, detailed treatment of marketing materials includes graphic elements, 
fonts and color palettes.  
 
Q. How are you planning on using your tagline?  
A. To drive brand familiarity and to support marketing materials.  
 
Q. For usability testing, will Portland Business Alliance be sourcing the users? 
A. Yes. 
 
Q. In the list under "Proposals must include the following", biographies of core staff are requested in 
items 2 and 10. Please clarify whether you would like to see the bios once or twice in the proposal. 
A. Both. Item 2 represents core organizational staff, while item 10 represents key project staff. 
  
Q. Under the Objectives section, one of the desired actions is "sharing content to and from the site". 
Will this ability to share to the site be limited to staff and/or members, or will the general public be 
allowed?  
A. Sharing to and from the site will likely be limited to staff and members. External content shared to 
site by members is routinely reviewed.  
 
Q. Currently, all the membership functions seem to be handled by GrowthZone, so we just want to 
confirm whether there is any other interactive functionality we need to consider. (We understand that 
the newsletter, VoterVoice and social media elements are separate.) 
A. At the present time, these are the main elements, though this could change as part of the selected 
vendor’s discovery process. 
 
Q. As far as we can tell, the integration between your WordPress site and GrowthZone is really a 
series of redirects to pages on a separate GrowthZone subdomain called 
“community.portlandalliance.com”. With that in mind, would we be responsible for re-skinning the 
GrowthZone interface to match the front-facing website? 
A. In most cases, the GrowthZone content (events pages, member directory, members-only section) 
directs to a subdomain hosted by Growthzone. The selected website vendor would need to provide a 
template to implement on these pages but will not be directly responsible for re-skinning pages on 
the subdomain. Please note there are some cases in which GrowthZone content is integrated into 
the design on the primary domain. (For instance, the "upcoming events" widget on the Alliance 
homepage.) It would be useful to have the capacity to pull this dynamically generated content from 
GrowthZone into the site in strategic ways. We would look to any potential vendor for suggestions on 
how to best leverage this content to improve user experience and content maintenance. 
 
Q. In GrowthZone, we notice the Forum is empty. Is it simply not used by members, or is it broken? 
A. The forum tool is functional, but not used by our members. 
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Q. Under project scope, The Alliance wishes to provide users with ability to update their profiles. We 
can see how users do this in GrowthZone, but is there additional functionality you require here? And 
is there a periodic survey of members with request to update their information? Does Alliance have a 
process for curating the database and removing obsolete profiles? 
A. All member information will be centered in GrowthZone, so no additional functionality is required. 
However, the website UX must include an intuitive way for users to login/access the GrowthZone 
tool. 
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